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Constellation Lunar Lander Development Study
Solicitation NNJ08ZBT001
Amendment 002
Questions and Answers

1. Question:  Will NASA accept proposals that address key subsystems of the Lunar Lander design, as opposed to the entire design? / Will NASA accept and rate highly a proposal that focuses the analyses and recommendations on a subsystem (e.g., life support), or do all proposals need to address the entire lander system?

Answer:  Proposals addressing less than the entire design may be accepted at NASA’s discretion based on the funding available and number of satisfactory proposals covering the entire design.
2. Question:  Are universities allowed to co-participate with industry team members?  
Answer:  Yes, universities are allowed to co-participate with industry team members.
3. Question:  Can NASA Centers be used as team members?
Answer:  No, NASA Centers may not be used as team members.
4. Question:  Can we use a NASA Center in an advisory capacity?
Answer:  No, NASA Centers may not be used in an advisory capacity.
5. Question:  Are non-U.S. companies eligible to participate in this opportunity?

Answer:  No, non-U.S. companies are not eligible to participate in this opportunity.
6. Question:  For purposes of the proposal, should we assume that the possible three TIMs will be in person or via teleconference?

Answer:  Assume that the three possible TIMs (Technical Interchange Meetings) will be supported in person.
7. Question:  If a proposer submits a combined Task 1 and a Task 2 proposal, does NASA have the option of awarding a Task 1 only contract, or must the award be for the combined effort?

Answer:  NASA may choose, at its discretion, to award a contract for only Task 1 (Study Area 1) in this circumstance.
8. Question:  Could you please confirm that the acceptable risk levels as quoted in the ESAS report are the ones to be applied for this work effort?

Answer:  You should propose your concept for determining “acceptable” risk.  That may or may not be consistent with ESAS report.
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9. Question:  The LDAC-1 design data documents presented very little regarding software. Is software a relevant topic for study under this contract?

Answer:  Yes, software is a relevant topic for study under this contract.
10. Question:  Will the models and tools that were used to develop the LDAC-1 data be made available to Industry for use in the performance of this contract?  If the answer to this question is “yes,” please provide a list of what models and tools will be available.
Answer:  No, the models and tools that were used to develop the LDAC-1 (Lunar Design Analysis Cycle 1) data will not be made available to Industry for use in the performance of this contract.
11. Question:  What are the allowable margins for the proposal documents?
Answer:  Proposal documents should have margins of at least one inch on all sides.
12. Question:  Should the separate parts of the proposal (SOW, Key Personnel, Price) be delivered as separate files or as one file? If separate files, should the Price proposal be a Word file or an Excel file?
Answer:  The separate parts of the proposal should be delivered as separate files.  The Price proposal may be submitted as either a Word file or Excel file.
13. Question:  Could you provide a full list of the certifications required in Section IX, P2 so that we can be sure we are in compliance?
Answer:  Consistent with FAR Subpart 4.12 Representations and Certifications, the solicitation has been revised to reflect the requirement for offerors to update the representations and certifications submitted to Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA), as necessary.  This is required in conjunction with registration in the Central Contractor Registration (CCR) database (http://www.ccr.gov/).  Submission of a separate package of representations and certifications for this procurement action will not be required.
14. Question:  Section IX, part 2 (Certifications), page 8:  Will the required “completed package of certifications and representations” be included in the limited page count?  Should it be included in the Price Proposal?

Answer:  See answer to question 13 above.

15. Question:  The synopsis that was issued on December 21, 2007, identified the following requirements:   a) The NAICS Code and Size Standard are 541330 and 1,000 employees, respectively.  b) Please notify the Contracting Officer of your intent to respond by noon local time January 31, 2008.  Are the above requirements still valid since they were not included in the BAA issued on January 11, 2008? 
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Answer:  Yes, the requirements are still valid.  However, the size standard for NAICS Code 541330 (Engineering Services, including the exception for Military and Aerospace Equipment) was incorrectly stated as 1,000 employees in the synopsis.  The correct size standard for the applicable NAICS Code (541330) is average annual receipts of $25 million.

The request that offerors notify the Contracting Officer of their intent to respond to the solicitation by January 31, 2008, is not a requirement but is desired by the Government for planning purposes.
16. Question:  Will the contractors be allowed to upload their proposal to Windchill if it includes export control data?

Answer:  Proposals should be submitted per the instructions provided in the solicitation. 
17. Question:  Are there page limitations associated with a title/cover page?  Similarly, are there page limitations for a table of contents, table of figures, and other traditional document pages?  We would request that one page each be allowed for a title/cover page, table of contents, and table of figures without impacting the existing page limitations.

Answer:  Title pages, tables of contents, and tables of figures are excluded from the page count limits specified.
18. Question:  Section III, page 4, states, “For the purposes of this BAA, additional functionality is not being addressed for either the LDAC-1 design or the safety and reliability upgrade.”  Does that mean that bidders specifically should not propose to address additional functionality?  For example, should issues such as extensibility to future missions or global access be ignored in this study?

Answer:  Additional functionality should certainly be addressed relative to the point of departure design being extensible to meet the intent of an ultimately safe and reliable vehicle.  
19. Question:  Following the previous question: Section III, page 4 states, “All intentional deviations from the minimum mass design were tracked and approved by the LLPO Vehicle Integration Team.”  Can this data—the list of intentional deviations—be provided to the bidders for consideration during the proposal process?  If not, will it be provided to awardees after contract start?

Answer:  It will be provided to the community but is not necessary for the development and submission of the proposal 
20. Question:  Section III, page 4, states, “The LDAC-1 minimum functional design provides the foundation vehicle for safety and reliability trade studies and analysis that are being performed in LDAC-2.”  Will NASA’s LDAC-2 study results be provided to the BAA awardees?  If so, how, and should awardees plan on incorporating or analyzing NASA’s LDAC-2 results during their studies?
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Answer:  The LDAC-2 results will not be public until after the contract deliverables have been submitted.  At that time, the government will “publish” the data on the Lander Public Data Windchill site.  This data will be part of the discussion during the final collaborative TIM between the awardees and NASA.
21. Question:  Should awardees expect to be able to obtain further data on NASA’s design (beyond what is currently available on the password-protected Windchill site) after award?

Answer:  In the event that we have unintentionally left out relevant data from the initial data drop, we will “publish” the additional data to the Windchill site for community access.
22. Question:  The Introduction (page 1) states, “Given that Study Area 1 is the core emphasis of the BAA, offerors may propose solutions for Study Area 1 or Study Areas 1 and 2, but not Study Area 2 exclusively.  Proposals that only address Study area 2 will not be accepted/evaluated.”  However, it is unclear how NASA plans to evaluate bids that propose to both areas.  Will bids encompassing both Study Areas 1 and 2 be assessed together only, or might NASA award a contract for SA1 to a bidder while “passing” on that bidder’s proposal to SA2?  In other words, is selection of SA1 contingent on selection of SA2 for “full scope” bids or could NASA choose to award the former without the latter?  Will NASA evaluate the two sections completely separately, or will the evaluation of one Study Area proposal have some impact on the evaluation of the other Study Area proposal?

Answer:  SA1 is not contingent on SA2.  That said, proposals will be evaluated based on all of the data presented.  Therefore, a proposal that includes SA2 may add strength to the overall assessment of the proposal.
